
 

NOVEMBER 15, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED  INDEPENDENT  SCHOOL  DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD  MEETING 
Thursday, January 17, 2013 

7:00 PM  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Michael Richard, President ● Karen Mendoza, Vice President ● Julie Thompson, Secretary 

Dar Hakimzadeh ● Sam Hopkins ● Frank Torres ● Rhonda Zacharias 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Recognitions/awards  

4. Audience to patrons  

5. Approval of minutes  

A. December 20, 2012 - Regular Board Meeting 6 

6. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

7. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

C. Introductions  

8. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal:  Instructional  

1. Consider approval of out-of-state trip requests, including, but not limited 

to: 

 

a. Foster High and Lamar Consolidated High Schools Speech and Debate 

teams 

14 

B. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

Comprehensive Annual Finance Report for 2011 - 2012 year 

15 

2. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 16 

3. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 20 

4. Consider approval of Superintendent Priorities for 2012 - 2013 22 

5. Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2013 30 

6. Consider adoption of 2013 - 2014 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar 32 

7. Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming  

a. Black History Month 34 

b. Career and Technical Education Month 36 

c. School Counselor Week 38 

8. Consider approval of resolution proclaiming opposition of school vouchers 40 

9. Consider approval of property insurance coverage for Lamar CISD 42 



10. Consider approval of Maintenance and Operations Supplies 45 

11. Consider approval of purchase of School Buses 49 

12. Consider approval of purchase of Food Service Vehicles 51 

13. Consider approval of material testing services for the renovations to Bowie 

Elementary, Jackson Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry High 

schools 

53 

14. Consider approval of professional surveying services 65 

15. Consider approval of procurement method for the construction of the new 

natatorium, Traylor Stadium renovations, and the new Lamar Consolidated 

High School baseball field 

70 

16. Consider approval of geotechnical services for the design of the Jackson 

Elementary and Terry High School renovation projects 

73 

17. Consider approval of design development for the following school 

renovations:   

 

a. Bowie Elementary School 80 

b. George Junior High School 81 

c. Jackson Elementary School 82 

d. Lamar Consolidated High School 83 

e. Terry High School 84 

18. Consider approval of design development for the new Lamar Consolidated 

High School Baseball Field 

85 

19. Consider approval of amendment to easement at the old Jane Long Gym 

site 

86 

9. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. School Safety Review 95 

2. Budget Calendar 96 

3. Tax Collection Report 98 

4. Payments for Construction Projects 104 

5. Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 105 

6. Bond Update 108 

10. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

112 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations or employment of professional 

personnel 

 



b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 113 

c. Employee resignations and retirements 114 

d. Consider employment of Director of Food Service  

e. Superintendent's Evaluation and Contract  

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land acquisition  

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

c. Discussion with legal counsel regarding redistricting process  

d. Discuss and consider settlement offer in Cause No. 11-DCV-195157  

 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 

 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 

Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour or place given in this notice or as soon after the 

commencement of the meeting covered by this notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 

session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Section 551.071-

551.084, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:  

 

Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from a hearing during 

examination of another witness. 

 

Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 

subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 

Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property. 

 

Section 551.073 - For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or 

donation. 

 

Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 

reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 

charges against a public officer or employee. 

 





 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
 
On this the 20th day of December 2012, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Michael Richard, at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
Michael Richard  President 
Karen Mendoza  Vice President 
Julie Thompson  Secretary 
Dar Hakimzadeh  Member 
Sam Hopkins   Member 
Frank Torres   Member 
Rhonda Zacharias  Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Walter Bevers   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Executive Director of Human Resources  
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
 
 

6



 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 55 

 
 
President Richard read a brief statement regarding the school shooting tragedy in Connecticut and 
asked that all take a brief moment in silence. 
 
2.         OPENING OF MEETING 
 

The prayer was led by Dr. Bevers and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 
3. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
 

Cheryl Bowman, representative of CenterPoint Energy SCORE Program, reported that this is 
the district’s fifth year to participate in the SCORE Program.  The total amount of incentives 
that Lamar CISD earned this year was $31,440.04, earning a total of $249,327 in the five 
years of participation. 

 
4. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 

Kathryn Kaminski, Director of Gingerbread House, addressed the Board in regards to 
discontinuing the after-school program at Frost and Hutchison Elementary Schools and 
submitted a petition with over 70 signatures and two letters from families that are requesting 
that the program be renewed at these two elementary schools. 
 
Cindy Gifford, Director of Tiny Steps Educational Center, addressed various concerns that 
she has regarding the after-school program. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2012 REGULAR BOARD MEETING,  

NOVEMBER 13, 2012 SPECIAL MEETING (WORKSHOP), AND NOVEMBER 15, 2012 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
It was moved by Ms. Thompson and seconded by Ms. Mendoza that the Board of Trustees 
approve the minutes of the September 20, 2012 Regular Board Meeting, November 13, 2012 
Special Meeting (Workshop), and November 15, 2012 Regular Board Meeting.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
6. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

 Meetings and Events 

Mr. Hopkins reported that the Facilities Committee met.  The James Adolphus 
Elementary School and Polly Ryon Middle School are currently 55% to 60% 
complete and the ag barn renovations are about 90% complete.   
 
Ms. Zacharias reported that the Technology Committee met today and 
information will be shared during the board meeting tonight. 
 
Ms. Thompson reported that the Attendance Boundary Committee met and 
tentative time lines for rezoning issues are provided in the agenda. 
 
Karen Mendoza reported that as of January 2013 Catherine Clark will serve as 
Associate Executive Director for TASB Governmental Relations.  She is 
replacing Jackie Lain. 

 
 
 

7



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 56 
 

President Richard reported that the Finance Committee met and began 
preliminary discussions on property and casualty insurance and also discussed 
the LEAP Program which is included in the agenda for discussion. 

 
 
7. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 

 
 Meetings and Events 

Dr. Randle commented that we are all deeply troubled with the Sandy Hook 
Elementary tragedy in Connecticut and reminded all about our safety procedures, 
check-in procedures, and screening procedures that we currently have on all of 
our campuses. Procedures are being reviewed and asked  that staff pay attention 
to questions from parents regarding our procedures and be clear about them. 
 
 Information for Immediate Attention 

Dr. Randle commented on his trip to China.  Fort Bend County signed an 
agreement while he was there and became a sister city to Chancheng District, 
Foshan.   He is so proud of our staff and students. We will be sending them an 
invitation to come here to see technology and how it is used in our community. 
 
 Introductions 

 
ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  8.A-1 — 8.A-2, 8.B-1 – 8.B-3, 8.B-5 – 8.B-11, 
and 8.C-1 – 8.C-4 
 
It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Mr. Torres that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
8. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
8. A-1  Approval of the 2013—2014 Student Course Selection Catalog 
 

approved the 2013 – 2014 student course selection catalog as presented. 
 
8. A-2  Approval of the 2013 – 2014 Agreement for Prevention Services 
 

approved the Memorandum of Understanding for a prevention specialist to provide 
evidence-based substance use prevention activities at selected campuses for the 
2013—2014 school year.  (See inserted pages 56-A—56-B.) 

 
 
8. B GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
8. B-1  Consider Ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 
 

ratified the quarterly investment report as submitted for the quarter ending November 
30, 2012.  (See inserted pages 56-C—56-H.) 

 
8. B-2  Consider Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 
 

ratified the financial and investment reports as presented. 
 

8



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 57 
 
 
8. B-3  Approval of Budget Amendment Requests 
 

approved budget amendment requests as attached.  (See 57-A—57-B.) 
 
8. B-5  Approval of Awards, Incentives, and Custom Ready-to-Wear 
 

approved all vendors who responded to the awards, incentives, and custom ready-to-
wear bid. 

 
8. B-6  Approval of Asbestos Abatement and Mold Remediation Services 
 

approved ARC Abatement, Inc. for the asbestos abatement and mold remediation 
services. 

 
8. B-7  Approval of Vendor for Textbook Management System 
 

approved Hayes Software Systems’ proposal for Textbook Inventory and Bar Code 
Automation System software in the amount of $64,116 (for the first year) to include 
software licensing, implementation, training, and scanners. 

 
8. B-8  Consider Acceptance of Award of Merit for Purchasing and Operations 
 

accepted the District’s TASBO Award of Merit for purchasing and operations for the 
fiscal year ending August 31, 2012 (school year 2011-12). 

 
8. B-9  Approval of Donations to the District, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Austin Elementary School 
b. Beasley Elementary School 
c. Frost Elementary School 
d. Jane Long Elementary School 
e. Special Education – SERS Department 

 
approved donations to the district. 

 
8. B-10 Approval of CSP #41-2012 for the Annual Building Envelope Maintenance/ 

Repair Services 
 
approved Restoration Services, Inc. as the primary contractor and PRC Roofing Inc. 
as the secondary contractor for the annual building envelope maintenance/repair 
services contractor. 

 
8. B-11 Approval of Professional Surveying Services 
 

approved Charlie Kalkomey Surveying for professional surveying services (topo-
graphic survey) for the new natatorium, new baseball field, and renovations to Traylor 
Stadium, not to exceed the amount of $19,500.  (See inserted page 57-C.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 58 
 
 
8. C GOAL:  TECHNOLOGY 
 
8. C-1  Approval of Purchase of Additional Data Migration Services 
 

approved Skyward’s proposal for data migration services for seven junior high and 
middle school campuses in the amount of $8,750 to include master schedules con-
version and project management.  (See inserted pages 58-A—58-B.) 

 
8. C-2  Approval of Vendor for Network Maintenance and Support 
 

approved Micro Integration and Programming Solutions proposal for network main-
tenance and support in the amount of $99,840.  (See inserted pages 58-C—58-F.) 

 
8. C-3  Approval of Contracted Services for KRONOS Project Management and Imple- 

mentation Support 
 
approved a change order to Davidson Services, LLC for additional project manage-
ment and support services relating to the KRONOS timekeeping system implementa-
tion and authorized the superintendent to amend the contract for services.  

 
8. C-4  Approval of Contracted Services for District Information Technology Projects 
 

approved a change order to Go IT Services, Inc for professional services for Project 
Management, Business/Data Analysis and application development for district 
Information Technology projects, and authorized the superintendent to amend con-
tracts and budgets for services. 

 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
9. C GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
9. C-1  Quarterly Academic Update 
 

Staff shared information on geo-conferencing and how Lamar CISD students have 
become involved in integrating technology and become involved in being global 
learners. 

 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
8. B GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
8. B-4  Approval of Renewal of Delinquent Tax Attorney Contract 
 

It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Mr. Hopkins that the Board of 
Trustees approve the renewal of the contract with the law firm of Linebarger Goggan  
Blair and Sampson, LLP (“the Firm”) for delinquent tax attorney services for a one-
year period beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013, with 
automatic one-year renewals unless terminated by the District or the Firm.  The 
motion carried unanimously.  (See inserted pages 58-G—58-K.) 

 

10



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 59 
 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
9. A GOAL:  COMMUNICATIONS 
 
9. A-1  School Board Recognition Month 
 
  (See inserted page 59-A.) 
 
 
9. B GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
9. B-1  Report on Board Member Training 
 
     Current Accumulated  Total 
 

Dar Hakimzadeh  13.75     33.25   47.00 
Sam Hopkins   15.00   166.75  181.75 

 Karen Mendoza  77.25     90.50  167.75 
 Michael Richard  20.75   189.25  210.00 
 Julie Thompson  20.00   109.00  129.00 
 Frank Torres     3.00         3.00 
 Rhonda Zacharias  24.25       8.00    32.25 
 
 
9. C GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
9. C-2  LEAP:   Lamar Educational Adventure Program 
 

Ms. Michelle Piña Amos, Program Coordinator of LEAP, provided a six month update 
and a plan for further expansion. 

 
9. C-3  STAAR End of Course Grading Policy 
 

The Commissioner of Education announced that he was deferring the implementation 
of the new 15% grading requirements connected with the STAAR End-of-Course 
exams for the 2012—2013 school year.  Since the Commissioner’s announcement, 
the District will keep in place our current grading policies and not implement the 15% 
rule this year. 

 
 
9. D GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
9. D-1  2012 – 2013 Attendance Boundary Committee 
 
9. D-2  Lamar Educational Awards Foundation (LEAF) Update 
 
9. D-3  Tax Collection Report 
 
9. D-4  Schools Conserving Resources (SCORE) Program 
 
9. D-5  Payments for Construction Projects 
 
9. D-6  Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 

11



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 60 
 
 
9. D-7  Bond Update 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations or employment of professional personnel 
b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Reassignments of professional personnel (Information) 
d. Employee resignations and retirements 
e. Superintendent’s Evaluation and Contract 

 
2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 

of real property 
a. Land acquisition 

 
3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 

duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
c. Discussion with legal counsel regarding redistricting process 

 
At 7:55 p.m. the Board convened to Closed Session for the purposes listed above. 
 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 8:15 p.m. 
 
 
PERSONNEL RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10. A-1(a) Employment of Professional Personnel 
 
It was moved by Ms. Mendoza and seconded by Ms. Zacharias that the Board of Trustees approve 
personnel as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Employed 
 
Holik, Amy TBD      Capital Assets/Textbook Accountant Property Management 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Recommend that we adopt a resolution to oppose school vouchers which would divert public funds 
away from public schools 
 
Review safety compliance in our schools 

12



Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 20, 2012 – page 61 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Michael Richard     Julie Thompson 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

 

13



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF STUDENT TRIP REQUESTS 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve out-of-state travel for Foster High School and 
Lamar Consolidated High School Speech and Debate teams to travel to Evanston, 
Illinois, on May 3-6, 2013.    
 
 
IMPACT/ RATIONALE: 
 
The FHS and LCHS Speech and Debate teams request permission to travel to 
Evanston, Illinois from May 3-6, 2013 by airplane. The approximate cost for each 
student and sponsor/chaperone is $500.  Meals, airfare, hotel, tournament registration 
and ground transportation are included in the costs.  The expenses for the trip will be 
paid for by fund-raising activities by the students, as well as family contributions.  
District funds will be drawn from existing campus budgets and would cover sponsor 
expenses.  The accompanying sponsors will be Kendra Willeby and Yvonne Eype. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The students will participate in a national championship tournament on the campus of 
Northwestern University.  In order to compete at the ToC-Extemp, students must qualify 
through success in regular season tournaments.  The ToC-Extemp will include 
competitors from nearly 40 states throughout the country.  Last year, Lamar 
Consolidated High School had a semifinalist at this highly prestigious event.  This level 
of competition serves as excellent preparation for the National Forensic League national 
competition, which this year will be held in Birmingham, Alabama in June.  Both high 
school debate programs have a history of success at national level contests. 
 
Submitted by:  Dr. Walter Bevers, Executive Director of Secondary Education 

   Ramiro Estrada, Director of Fine Arts    
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.A.#1. – INSTRUCTIONAL 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

14



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
FOR THE 2011 - 2012 YEAR 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2011-2012 fiscal year 
as presented. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
A draft of the Lamar CISD Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
2011-2012 fiscal year is enclosed for your review.  This report is comprised of three 
sections. The introductory section includes district information and a letter of 
transmittal.  The financial section includes the auditors’ report, various financial 
reports and notes, and required supplementary information.  The last section includes 
unaudited statistical trend data to better help the user of the financial statements to 
understand the economic conditions under which the District operates. 
 
A representative of Whitley Penn, LLP will be present to comment on the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and respond to any questions. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
              Michele Reynolds, Director of Finance  
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

8.B.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

15



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision-making.  

Financial reports and statements are end products of the reporting process.  You will 
find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of December 2012 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

8.B.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

16



SCHEDULE OF DECEMBER 2012 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of November total $17,552,466 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 11,471,920         

614 Employee Benefits 350,596

621 Professional Services 287,531

623 Education Services Center 10,799

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 231,253

625 Utilities 233,461

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 182,916

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 416,524

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 189,245

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 107,176

633 Testing Materials 1,381

634 Food Service 496,675

639 General Supplies and Materials 336,123

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 76,554

642 Insurance and Bonding Costs 750

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 604,539

661 Land Purchase and/or Improvements 761

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 2,363,276

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 126,595

129 Misc. Receivable/Alternative Certification Fees 1,800

131 Inventory Purchases 42,573

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 20,018

Total 17,552,466  
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of December 2012 including purchasing card 
transactions from the previous month. The detailed check information is available upon request. 
 

                                         
 

17



PERCENT

AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 109,037,453.00   36,929,005.00               (72,108,448.00)    33.9%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 72,193,252.00     46,882,285.00               (25,310,967.00)    64.9%

  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 2,070,000.00       840,991.00                    (1,229,009.00)      40.6%

TOTAL- REVENUES 183,300,705.00   84,652,281.00               (98,648,424.00)    46.2%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 154,357,056.00   49,587,324.00               104,769,732.00   32.1%

 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 13,371,217.00     3,154,203.00                 10,217,014.00     23.6%

  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 7,941,238.00       2,127,917.00                 5,813,321.00       26.8%

  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 8,878,938.00       2,965,558.00                 5,913,380.00       33.4%

  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 953,763.00          554,558.00                    399,205.00          0.0%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 185,502,212.00   58,389,560.00               127,112,652.00   31.5%

 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.

GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES

(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

18



19



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests as 
attached. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The proposed amendments represent budget amendments that require school board 
approval because budgeted funds are being reallocated between functional categories 
and/or new budgets are being established.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Budget amendments are mandated by the state for budgeted funds reallocated from 
one functional level, and state and/or federal project to another.  These budget changes 
are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain categories and 
amendments are for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are determined by 
the school board.   
 
Since the operating budget for LCISD is adopted at the functional level, budget 
revisions are required for reallocations between functional levels or when new budgets 
are being established. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by 
the school board and recorded in the board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability 
System Resource Guide, Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 14.0) 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
Resource:  Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

20



Pink Elementary is requesting a budget change to adjust campus budgets due to 
reduction in student enrollment based on October snapshot data. 
 
199-12 Instructional Resources & Media Services (2,000.00) 
199-11 Classroom Instruction 2,000.00 
 

 
The Accelerated Language department is requesting a budget change to pay for 
summer staff development trainings. 
 
199-11 Classroom Instruction (1,250.00) 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development 1,250.00 
 

 
Administration is requesting a budget change to purchase eduphoria! SchoolObjects: 
Aware Premium Suite subscription. 
  
199-23 School Leadership (4,726.00) 
199-53 Data Processing Services (35,600.00) 
199-31 Guidance & Counseling Services 40,326.00 
 

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SUPERINTENDENT PRIORITIES FOR 2012-2013 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the superintendent priorities for 2012-2013. 
 

 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
In October, the board and superintendent participated in their annual Teambuilding 
Session led by Bill Nemir, a consultant with the Texas Association of School Boards.  The 
team reviewed the 2011 priorities and developed five priorities for 2012-2013. 
 
The superintendent reviewed the report and developed a set of evaluation goals related 
to the priorities and expectations.   
 

 
Submitted by:    Dr. Thomas Randle 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 
 

 

8.B.#4. - PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

22



  
  

William Nemir 

This document is provided for educational purposes only and contains information to facilitate a general understanding of the law. It is not an exhaustive treatment of the 
law on this subject nor is it intended to substitute for the advice of an attorney. It is important for you to consult with your own attorneys in order to apply these legal 
principles to specific fact situations. © 2012 Texas Association of School Boards, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Setting District/ 

Administrative Priorities 

Team-Building Session 

Final Report 

Lamar CISD 

October 9, 2012

23



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  2     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Participants 

Dar Hakimzadeh    Trustee 

Sam Hopkins    Trustee 

Karen Mendoza    Trustee 

Thomas Randle    Superintendent 

Michael Richard    Trustee 

Julie Thompson    Trustee 

Frank Torres    Trustee 

Rhonda Zacharias    Trustee 

 

Agenda 

 Introductory Remarks and Review of Roles 

 Review of Priorities for Administration 2011-12 

 Discussion/Selection of Priorities for 2012-13 

 Discussion of Expectations for Each Priority 

 Discussion of Other Team Issues  

 Listing of Next Steps 

24



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  3     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Summary of Session 

The consultant opened the session by asking the question of whether the board was 
adding value to the educational enterprise of the district and the community. He 
noted that many boards don’t ask this question but that it’s a central question for a 
board to ask. The consultant then noted that a board can add value partly by creating 
a vision and a clear sense of direction for the district and partly by creating a 
community culture of support for education in general and for the initiatives of the 
district in particular. 

Following this introduction, the superintendent gave a brief summary of actions taken 
and results obtained over the past year in regard to the board’s 2010-11 priorities 
and expectations. 

The board then reviewed the basic priorities from last year. The consultant noted that 
several of the priorities were reinforced by five-year plans that had now come to 
term, and he asked if the board wanted to continue them as priorities. The board 
indicated that it wanted to make no changes in the priorities for the coming year. 

The board and superintendent then discussed each of the five priorities and asked 
what needed to happen over the next year or two to ensure ongoing improvement 
with regard to each. The discussion was most protracted with regard to the first 
priority, regarding continuing improvement in the instructional program. 

The board developed expectations with regard to each of the priorities for the coming 
year. 

The priorities and revised expectations appear on the following pages. 

25



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  4     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Draft Priorities for the District and Administration 2012-13 

The board and superintendent agreed to retain the same statements as priorities for the 
district in 2012-13. Expectations of the board were revised in accordance with the 
districts’ current progress on initiatives and recent developments that may affect district 
operations. 

District Priority One: Continue to make improvements and 

advancements in the instructional program. The board and superintendent 

had extensive discussion about the need to increase the rigor of instruction and the 
effectiveness of professional development among the teaching staff. The superintendent 
noted current efforts in this regard, some of which the board members were familiar with 
and some of which they were not. The board affirmed the importance of those efforts.  

The superintendent stressed the importance to the district of a truly effective early 
childhood education program and noted current efforts in that regard. The board 
concurred with the importance of this area of district effort. 

Several members noted the importance of ensuring that students in the alternative learning 
center do not unnecessarily fall behind their classes while attending the center. Individual 
members raised concerns about the class ranking policy, the importance of communication 
with parents, and staffing in the curriculum and instruction central office area. 

The board agreed on the following expectations for the coming year. 

Expectations of the Board 

 Continue implementation of the district’s data-based assessment of teacher 
effectiveness and initiate implementation of programs and mechanisms for 
teacher development, including peer assistance, based on the assessment 
model. Monitor the effectiveness of the efforts and report to the board as 
appropriate. The goal of these efforts is demonstrable improvement in 
teacher effectiveness as reflected in the assessment model. 

 Continue to find new and sustainable resources for the district’s early childhood 
education program, with the goal of continuing and expanding the reach of the 
program. Over the course of the year, conduct research to determine the 
effectiveness of the districts’ one-day as opposed to half–day program. 

 Continue implementing the Common Formative Assessment program, with 
emphasis on ensuring that teachers are implementing the program 
effectively. Begin assessing the effectiveness of the program in improving 
instruction. Report when appropriate. 

 Collect relevant data on the alternative learning center program that will allow 
the district to know if the program needs additional district attention to ensure 
that students in the ALC do not unnecessarily fall behind in their work. 

26



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  5     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Draft Priorities for the District and Administration 2012-13 

District Priority Two: Continue planning for expected growth within the 

current economic climate. The board and superintendent discussed the current 

bond projects and the time-frame for possibly needing another bond. The superintendent 
noted the impact that the upcoming legislative session may have on district decision 
making in this area. The board and superintendent agreed on the following expectations 
for this priority. 

 Implement the planned building program from the 2011 bond. Bring in all 
projects on budget or under budget. 

 Report as appropriate on facilities needs that are likely to exist subsequent to 
the current building program. 

At some point during the course of the building program, the board, in 
considering future facility needs, will consider a number of long-range 
questions to provide direction to the administration about facilities, moving 
forward. Among the questions to be considered are questions on the order of: 
should the district plan for 4A-sized high schools or 5A-sized high schools? 
What will be the practice on the distribution of expensive facilities such as 
natatoriums? The purpose of this discussion is to set direction for the district in 
the face of growth, mindful of the district’s current and future financial picture. 

 Provide direction (Board to superintendent) on where the district should place 
its priorities with regard to advocacy efforts in the upcoming legislative session. 

This is an expectation of the board itself, not of administration. But it is a 
necessary prelude to administrative action during the upcoming session. 

District Priority Three: Continue improvements in career and 

technology education. The board and superintendent continue to believe that 

career and technology education (CTE) are critical to the long-range success of many 
students in the district. The district is coming off the final year of the most recent five 
year plan for the CTE program. The board and superintendent agreed to the following 
expectations. 

Expectations of the Board 

 Create a new five-year plan for Career and Technology Education to ensure 
ongoing improvement in the programs, as measured by student participation 
in programs, student success in completing the programs and gaining 
professional certification, and the long-term viability of careers in the 
programs offered. 

 Provide the board, during the year, with an update on the state of the career 
and technology education program in the district. The update will include an 
assessment of the success of the program, including information on student 
participation, student achievement in the program, and the efficiency of  

27



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  6     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Draft Priorities for the District and Administration 2012-13 

program operations. The update will also include recommendations for 
ongoing improvements in the program. As a part of the recommendations, the 
superintendent will include options for expanding the scope and reach of the 
program, including exploring partnerships with other districts and educational 
institutions. 

District Priority Four: Continue improvements to the safety and security 

of the district’s schools. The board noted the district’s success in implementing 

programs to ensure safe and secure schools. The board stressed the need, however, to 
continue monitoring safety and security diligently and to continue actively exploring 
techniques to minimize bullying and harassment on school campuses. 

Expectations of the Board 

 The district will continue monitoring consistent implementation of the district’s 
existing procedures regarding school safety and security. Special attention 
will be paid to consistent implementation of procedures related to bullying and 
harassment. 

 

District Priority Five: Continue improvements to efficiencies in district 

operations. The board expressed satisfaction with administration efforts to date to 

maximize efficiency in district operations. The board indicated that in the current 
budgetary climate, the effort needs to be continued. 

Expectations of the Board 

 The superintendent will explore options and develop contingencies necessary 
for presenting a balanced budget to the board for 2013-14, in the face of 
expected additional cuts in state funding. 

 The district will begin development of the next five-year plan for Information 
Technology (IT). The work will begin with an assessment of the success of 
the current plan in meeting and anticipating IT needs. 

 The superintendent will complete development for the board a succession 
plan for covering the position of the superintendent and the job 
responsibilities of senior staff. The board will consider developing a policy 
institutionalizing an annual review and, as necessary, revision of the 
succession plan. 

 The district will complete the process of realigning single-member board 
districts in a timely fashion. 

 

28



SETTING DISTRICT/ADMINISTRATIVE PRIORITIES: TEAM-BUILDING SESSION 

LAMAR CISD 

OCTOBER 9, 2012 

 

 

© 2012 TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS  7     

800-580-8272 

\\DMZ-BDBK08-PROD.DMZ.TASB.ORG\APPSDATA\BBOOKV3\DATA\0079901\50070343\DATA\UPLOADS\33317629.DOC 

 

Next Steps 

 The board will review the draft priorities and expectations above and revise or 
modify in whatever manner the board wishes. 

 The board will adopt the priorities and expectations. 

 Once the expectations are adopted, the superintendent will work with staff to 
propose measures for meeting the expectations, on which the board can 
assess superintendent performance in the coming year. 

At the end of the meeting the board discussed an issue of considerable importance and 
equal complexity for the district—the need to provide more comprehensive assistance to 
the district’s lowest socio-economic status students. The needs of these students and of 
their parents are often far in excess of what the district can provide. 

The board agreed to hold conversations down the line about this issue, along with the 
related issue of creating a culture of civic-mindedness among students and in the 
community culture at-large. Conversation will include discussion of what the district can 
do to help address these students’ needs and what will require a larger community-
based effort. 

The board discussed considering this topic as a possible priority for the district at some 
point in coming years. 

29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD CALENDAR FOR 2013 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Trustees approve the proposed Board Calendar for 2013. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The Board of Trustees has major responsibilities and activities at certain times during   
the year. This calendar outlines a timeline for when these major responsibilities and 
activities should occur. Upon approval, this calendar will be followed unless the Board  
President and Superintendent agree upon changes. 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

30



 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD CALENDAR 

2013 

 

January  Audit Report 

  Hearing on AEIS Report 

  School Calendar 

  Superintendent’s Evaluation 

 

March Administrative Contracts  

 Board Self-Evaluation 

 

April Employee Contracts 

 

May Budget Workshop 

 Baccalaureates 

   

June Budget Workshop 

 Graduations 

 

July Superintendent’s Formative Conference 

 Monitor Progress of District Goals 

 Budget Workshop 

 

August Board Member Training Report 

 Budget Workshop 

 Public Hearing on Budget 

 Budget Adoption for 2013 – 2014 

 Teacher Appraisal Calendar 

 Current Year Final Budget Amendments 

 Public Hearing on Tax Rate 

 Adoption of Tax Rate for 2013 

 

September Board/Superintendent Team Building 

 District Improvement Plans 

 Campus Improvement Plans 

 School FIRST Report 

 

December Board Member Training Report 

 

31



       
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2013-14 STUDENT/STAFF 
INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the student/staff instructional calendar (attached) for 2013-2014, 
as recommended by the Districtwide Student Improvement Council (DSIC). 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
At a meeting held on November 14, the DSIC, a districtwide committee of teachers, parents and 
administrators, reviewed two calendar proposals developed by the administration.  The DSIC 
members were asked to discuss the two proposals with their campus staff and to submit any new 
recommendations. There were no additional recommendations submitted.   
 
The DSIC met on January 9 and after discussion, the committee called for the vote. Calendar Option 
#1 was the option selected to bring to the Board for approval with 42 votes.  Option #2 received 6 
votes.  Those favoring Option #1 expressed a desire to maintain a calendar similar to the current 
2012-2013 calendar. Option #1 is also very similar to neighboring district calendars. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The calendar presented for adoption is based on the instructional requirements of the district and 
follows state legislative guidelines.  The calendar recommended for approval provides 178 
instructional days. Under this option the school year will begin on Monday, August 26, 2013 and end 
on Thursday, June 5, 2014. The administration will review before adding six/nine weeks begin and 
end dates, early release days, grading periods and non-work days.    
 
 
Submitted by:   Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

8.B.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

32



 S  M  T  W  T   F  S S  M  T  W  T  F  S 

 S  M  T  W  T   F  S 

SE
PT

EM
BE

R

A
PRIL

FEBRUA
RY

 S  M  T  W  T  F S JA
NUA

RY
JUNE

M
A
RCH

M
A
Y

DE
CE

M
BE

R
NO

VE
M
BE

R
OC

TO
BE

R
A
UG

US
T

JU
LY

3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, Texas 77471
832.223.0000  •  832.223.0002 (Fax)  • www.lcisd.org

Instructional Calendar

Grading Periods
First Semester

     Elementary =      Days
     Secondary =      Days

Second Semester
     Elementary =      Days
     Secondary =      Days

ToTal InsTrucTIonal Days = 178

©

s
(( ))

Student and Staff Holiday
Staff Development and Student Holiday
Workday/Student Holiday
Six/Nine Weeks Begins/Ends
New Teacher Staff Development Day
Teacher DMA Day and Student Holiday
Bad Weather Make-Up Day (if needed)
Early Release Day (K-5)
Early Release Day (6-12)

Staff Development & 
Student Holidays

August 14-16 (New Teachers)
August 19-23, Jan. 6, Feb. 17, Apr. 18, Jun. 6 

Student & Staff Holidays

230 Day Employees 
? Non-Work Days

• Labor Day
• Fort Bend Fair Day
• Thanksgiving Break
• Winter Break
• MLK Day
• Spring Break
• Easter Break 
• Memorial Day

Sept. 2
Sept. 27

Nov. 27-29
Dec. 23 - Jan. 3

Jan. 20
March 10 - 14

April 17
May 26

    1   2  3  4 5  
 6  7  8   9  10  11 12 
13  14  15   16  17  18 19  
20 21  22   23  24  25 26 
27 28  29   30  31 

 S  M  T  W  T   F  S  S  M  T  W  T   F  S 

 S  M  T  W  T   F  S  S  M  T  W  T   F  S 

 S  M  T  W  T   F  S  S  M  T  W  T   F  S 

 S  M  T  W  T   F  S  S  M  T  W  T   F  S 

Option
#1

2013-2014

s s s

©

   1 2  3 4 5 6   
7   8 9 10 11 12 13 
14  15 16 17 18 19 20 
21  22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31

     1 2 3 
4     5 6 7 8 9 10 
11  12 13 14 15 16 17 
18  19  20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

 1 2  3  4  5 6 7  
 8 9 10  11  12 13 14  
 15 16  17  18  19 20 21  
 22  23  24  25  26 27 28  
 29 30 

      1 2 
3     4  5  6 7 8 9 
10  11 12  13 14 15 16 
17  18 19  20 21 22 23 
24 25 26  27 28 29 30

 1 2  3  4 5 6 7  
 8 9 10 11 12 13 14  
 15 16 17 18 19 20 21        
 22 23 24 25 26 27 28  
 29 30 31

     1 2 3 4 
5    6 7 8 9 10 11 
12   13 14 15 16 17 18 
19  20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31

       1 
2  3 4 5 6 7 8 
9  10 11 12 13 14 15 
16  17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28

       1 
2  3  4   5  6  7 8 
9    10  11   12  13  14 15 
16  17  18   19   20  21 22 
23   25 26 27 28 2924

  31
23
  30

       1  2 3  
 4   5   6   7   8  9 10  
 11   12   13   14   15  16 17    
 18   19   20   21   22  23 24  
 25   26   27   28   29  30 31

 1 2  3   4   5  6 7 
 8 9  10   11   12  13 14  
 15 16  17   18   19   20 21  
 22 23 24 25 26 27 28      
 29 30  

©

    1 2 3 4 5 
6   7 8 9 10 11 12 
13   14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21  222 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30

Selected By DSIC

ThIs  opTIon Is sImIlar To The 
 currenT calenDar

D
R
A
FT

33



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February, 2013 as 
“Black History Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

National Black History Month is celebrated during February each year to recognize the rich 
heritage and significant contributions of persons of African-American heritage, both past and 
present. 
 
Lamar CISD schools have planned a wide variety of special activities to observe Black History 
Month during February. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations   
  
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8.B.#7a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 
 

34



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, Black History Month is celebrated throughout the 

United States during the month of February; and 

 

WHEREAS, Black History Month recognizes the rich heritage and 

significant contributions to our lives by African-Americans; and 

 

WHEREAS, schools are in a unique position to share an 

appreciation of the heritage and accomplishments of African-

Americans among children from all races and backgrounds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Lamar CISD schools commemorate Black History 

Month with special activities and observances; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District declare February 2013 

as Black History Month in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 

School District and encourage members of our community to 

share in this celebration of American heritage. 

 

Adopted this 17th day of January, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

         Michael Richard, President 

 

 

 

 

         Julie Thompson, Secretary 

 

 

  

35



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING CAREER AND 
TECHNICAL EDUCATION MONTH 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February, 2013 
as “Career and Technical Education Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The growing Texas population is becoming less rural, more global and more diverse. 
Our students need to be aware of, and prepared for, all opportunities in the work place. 
Specialized training is imperative. The knowledge necessary for a skilled-labor force in 
Texas starts with Career and Technical Education (CTE) at the secondary level. 
 
Knowing that CTE plays a critical role in student development, proclaiming February, 
2013 as “Career and Technical Education Month” will provide the community with a 
clear statement that CTE is valued and very important in the Lamar CISD. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
From a beginning with a limited number of vocational training programs, CTE has 
evolved into a broad system encompassing a variety of challenging fields. CTE features 
diverse subjects that are constantly evolving due to a changing global economy. 
Today’s CTE provides students: 
 

 Academic subject matter taught with a relevance to the real world; 

 Employability skills, from job-related abilities to workplace ethics; 

 Career pathways that link secondary and post-secondary education; and 

 Education for training related to workplace training, skill upgrades and career 
advancement. 

 
For the fall of 2012, Lamar CISD had 5,250 students participating in CTE courses from 
grades 7-12.  
 
 
Submitted by: Tracie Holub, Career and Technology Education   

Dr. Walter Bevers, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 

   
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

8.B.#7b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

 

36



 
 

Resolution 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Association for Career and Technical Education has designated 

February 1-28, 2013 as Career and Technical Education Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, profound economic and technological changes in our society are 

reflected in the structure and nature of work, placing new and additional 

responsibilities on our educational system; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education provides a career connection and is 

the backbone of a strong, well-educated workforce, which fosters productivity 

in business and industry and contributes to America’s leadership in the 

international marketplace; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education gives high school students 

experience in practical, meaningful applications of skills such as reading, writing 

and mathematics, improving the quality of their education, motivating potential 

dropouts and giving all students leadership opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ever-increasing cooperative efforts of career and technical 

educators, business and industry stimulate the growth and vitality of our local 

economy and that of the entire nation by preparing graduates for careers that 

are expected to experience the largest and fastest growth in the next decade; 

 

THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declare February 1-28, 2013 as Career and 

Technical Education Month and urge all citizens to become familiar with the 

services and benefits offered by career and technical education programs and 

to support these programs to enhance work skills and productivity. 

 

Adopted the 17th day of January, 2013 by the Board of Trustees. 
 

 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 

                                                              Michael Richard, President 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

                                                              Julie Thompson, Secretary 
 

 
 

37



 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
SCHOOL COUNSELORS’ WEEK 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming  the week of 
February 4-8, 2013 as "School Counselors’ Week" in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Professional counselors are valuable members of the educational teams in schools. 
They contribute to the development of children through guidance, counseling, 
consultation, coordination, assessment, and program management. 
 
School counselors also work with parents, teachers, administrators, and the community 
to optimize student learning. They are important resource persons in understanding and 
responding to student behavior. 
 
School counselors respond daily to crises in students' lives. These crises include  issues 
such as suicide, abuse, drug and alcohol use, pregnancy and family problems. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#7c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

 

38



Resolution 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help students in public schools to reach their 
full potential; and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors are committed to helping students explore 
their abilities, strengths, interests and talents as these traits relate to career 
awareness and development; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help focus on ways to further the educational, 
persona and social growth of their children; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors work with teachers and other educators to 
help students explore their potential and set realistic goals for themselves; and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors identify and utilize community resources that 
enhance and supplement comprehensive school counseling programs and help 
students become productive members of society.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District recognize the importance of school 
counseling programs, which are an integral part of the educational process that 
enables all to students to achieve success in school and declare the week of 
February 4-8, 2013 as “School Counselors’ Week” in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District.  

Adopted this 17th day of January, 2013.   

 

 

              Michael Richard, President 

 

 

               Julie Thompson, Secretary 

39



 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
OPPOSITION OF SCHOOL VOUCHERS 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution calling on the Texas 
Legislature to reject all attempts to divert public dollars away from public schools in the 
form of vouchers, taxpayer savings grants, tax credits, or any other mechanisms that 
have the effect of reducing funding to public schools. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

Vouchers, taxpayer savings grants, and tax credits have not been proven effective in 
improving student achievement and closing the achievement gap. As a result, these 
programs are an inefficient use of scarce resources and they divert public money away 
from public schools.  
 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations  
   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   
 

 

 

 

 

 

8.B.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

40



 
WHERE
Legislatu
of an eff
 
WHERE
educatio
 
WHERE
and 
 
WHERE
 
WHERE
account
 
WHERE
effective
 
WHERE
scarce r
 
WHERE
compet
 
NOW, 
Trustee
away fro
credits, 
schools.
 
Adopted

EAS, Article
ure “establ
ficient syste

EAS, during
on funding 

EAS, public 

EAS, schoo

EAS, vouch
tability and 

EAS, vouch
e in improv

EAS, divert
resources; 

EAS, vouch
itive, educa

THEREFO
es calls on t
om public s
 or any oth
. 

d on this 1

e 7, Section
ish and ma
em of publ

g the 82nd 
by $5.4 bil

 school dis

ol choice alr

ers, taxpay
 do not pro

ers, taxpay
ving studen

ing public m
and  

ers, taxpay
ated workf

RE, BE IT R
the Texas L
schools in t
her mechan

7th day of J

Res

n 1 of the T
ake suitable
ic free scho

Regular Se
lion; and 

stricts are s

ready exist

yer savings 
ovide all pa

yer savings 
t achievem

money awa

yer savings 
force to me

RESOLVED
Legislature 
the form o
nisms that h

anuary, 20

solutio

Texas Con
e provision 
ools;” and 

ession, the 

subject to s

ts in the Te

 grants, and
arents and 

 grants, and
ment and clo

ay from pub

 grants, and
eet the dem

D that the L
 to reject a
f vouchers
have the ef

13. 

 

on 

nstitution re
 for the su

Texas Legi

stringent ac

exas public 

d tax credit
children w

d tax credit
osing the a

blic school

d tax credit
mands of e

Lamar Con
all attempts
, taxpayer 
ffect of red

  __
M

__
J

equires tha
pport and 

islature red

ccountabili

 school sys

ts eliminate
with school 

ts have not
achievemen

s is an ineff

ts will not 
mployers i

nsolidated I
s to divert 
savings gra

ducing fund

________
Michael Ric

________
ulie Thomp

at the Texa
maintenanc

duced publ

ty standard

stem; and 

e public 
choice; and

t been prov
nt gap; and 

fficient use 

guarantee 
n Texas. 

ISD Board 
 public doll
ants, tax 
ing to publ

_________
hard, Presi

_________
pson, Secre

as 
ce 

ic 

ds; 

d 

ven 

 of 

a 

 of 
ars 

ic 

 
____ 
ident  

 
 

____ 
etary  

41



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPERTY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR  

LAMAR CISD 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the renewal of the District’s 2013-2014 property 
insurance coverage with Lexington Insurance Company through McGriff, Seibels and 
Williams of Texas, Inc. for one-year. 
 
 
IMPACT AND RATIONALE: 
 
Lexington Insurance Company provides current property coverage to the District with 
limits of $25,000,000 on claims related to named wind/flood, $10,000,000 on claims 
related to unnamed flood and a $100,000,000 limit on claims not related to named wind 
or flood. In July of 2012 this coverage was extended to March 1, 2013 in order to avoid 
a Request for Proposal Process during hurricane season. 
 
This year’s proposal provides the District with the same limits currently provided with a 
$64,845 increase in premium from $1,298,876 to $1,363,721 and a new policy renewal 
date of March 1, 2013. In comparison to other proposals received this coverage 
provides the District with higher limits of coverage and no increase in deductible. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The District initiated a process for procuring proposals through advertisements and 
emails. Sixteen agents were notified of the process and asked to state the intent to 
submit a proposal. Seven agents informed the District of their intent and provided the 
District with a list of preferred carriers. Starting with the incumbent’s request, carriers 
were assigned to agents based on order of preference.Three agents prepared and 
submitted proposals. 
 
 
Submitted by:   Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Executive Director of Human Resources Mgmt. 

              Robert Reim, Consultant, Robert V. Reim Company 
      Trudy Harris, Assistant Director of Employee Svcs./Risk Mgmt 
 
       
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

8.B.#9. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

42



SUMMARY OF PROPERTY INSURANCE PROPOSALS

Current 7.5% Deductible 7.5% Deductible 7.5% Deductible

Agent & Company
McGriff 

Lexington

McGriff          

Lexington

McGriff        

Lexington

SIG McDonald 

Travelers

Alamo           

AmRisc, Hartford, 

HSB

McGriff          

Lexington

Alamo           

AmRisc, Hartford, 

HSB

SIG McDonald 

Travelers

Replacement Cost Values 916,666,594 $916,666,594 $916,666,594 933,612,802 916,666,594 $916,666,594 916,666,594 Not Quoted

Limits:

Other than Wind Limit (AOP) 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 10,000,000 916,666,594 100,000,000 916,666,594

Unnamed Wind/Hail Limit 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 10,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

Named Wind Limit 25,000,000 25,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 25,000,000 10,000,000

Flood Limit-Unnamed 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

Flood Limit-Named Storm 25,000,000 25,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 25,000,000 10,000,000

Business Income or Extra Expense Limit 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 1,000,000 5,000,000 1,000,000

Primary Premium $1,298,876 $1,363,721 $891,735 $1,304,361 $991,863 $1,251,861 $944,653

Excess Premium $120,645

Equipment Breakdown Premium Included Included Included Included $20,000 Included $20,000

Scheduled Property Premium Included Included Included Included $47,668 Included $47,668

Terrorism Premium - Not included $81,824 $60,743 $48,522 $75,111 $48,522

Total Annualized Premium at:

Named Wind Deductible % 5% 5% 5% 22,500,000 Flat Ded 5% 7.5% 7.5% Not Quoted

 (minimum 250,000)

$1,298,876 $1,363,721 $1,012,380 $1,304,361 $1,059,531 $1,251,861 $1,012,321

Rate (Premium/Named Wind Limit) 5.1955 5.4549 10.1238 0.0000 10.5953 5.0074 10.1232

Maximum Payment vs. Scheduled Value Full Replacement Full Replacement Full Replacement 110% 110% Full Replacement 110%

Deductibles

Other than Wind Deductible (AOP) 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Unnamed Wind/Hail Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 250,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Flood Deductible-Unnamed 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000

Flood Deductible-Named Storm 250,000 Incl Named Storm Incl Named Storm 250,000 250,000 Incl Named Storm 250,000

1/8/2013 Page 1 33297428.xls [Summary]

43



SUMMARY OF PROPERTY INSURANCE PROPOSALS

Current 7.5% Deductible 7.5% Deductible 7.5% Deductible

Agent & Company
McGriff 

Lexington

McGriff          

Lexington

McGriff        

Lexington

SIG McDonald 

Travelers

Alamo           

AmRisc, Hartford, 

HSB

McGriff          

Lexington

Alamo           

AmRisc, Hartford, 

HSB

SIG McDonald 

Travelers

Equipment Breakdown Lexington Lexington Lexington Travelers HSB Lexington HSB

Limit 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 10,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 10,000 10,000 100,000 10,000

Scheduled Property Lexington Lexington Lexington Travelers Hartford Lexington Hartford

Portable Buildings Included Included Included Included 5,091,582 Included 5,091,582

Deductible Policy Deductible Policy Deductible Policy Deductible Policy deductible 25,000/location (19) Policy Deductible 25,000/location 19

Vehicles 10,000,000

Deductible Policy deductible

Computer Equipment Limit 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 (Brazos Ctr) 5,000,000 5,000,000 Brazos Ctr

Computer Software Limit 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 (Brazos Ctr) 1,000,000 1,000,000 Brazos Ctr

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 Policy deductible 50,000/location 100,000 50,000/location

Audio Visual Limit 737,000 737,000 737,000 Included 737,000 737,000 737,000

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 Policy deductible 2,500/location (5) 100,000 2,500/location 5

Band Instruments/Uniform Limit 1,508,155 1,508,155 1,508,155 Included 1,508,155 1,508,155 1,508,155

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 Policy deductible 5,000/location (4) 100,000 5,000/location 4

Security Radios Limit 37,000 37,000 37,000 Included 37,000 37,000 37,000

Office Equipment Limit 2,424,310 2,424,310 2,424,310 Included 2,424,310 2,424,310 2,424,310

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 Policy deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000

Contractor Equipment Limit 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

Agricultural Equipment Limit 37,000 37,000 37,000 Included 37,000 37,000 37,000

Forklifts, Tractors, Mowers Limit 595,225 595,225 595,225 Included 595,225 595,225 595,225

Deductible 100,000 100,000 100,000 Policy deductible 5,000 100,000 5,000

Primary Limit Named Storm

Limit 25,000,000 25,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000 25,000,000 1,000,000

Company & Rating Lexington Lexington  A XV Lexington  A XV Travelers A+ XV Lloyds A XV Lexington  A XV Lloyds A XV

Limit 500,000 500,000

Company & Rating Indian Harbor A XV Indian Harbor A XV

Limit 3,500,000 3,500,000

Company & Rating QBE Specialty A XV QBE Specialty A XV

Limit 5,000,000 5,000,000

Company & Rating Steadfast A+ XV Steadfast A+ XV

Excess of Named Storm 

Limit

Company & Rating

1/8/2013 Page 2 33297428.xls [Summary]

44



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve all vendors who responded with complete and acceptable 
bid responses to the Maintenance and Operations Supplies bid. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Purchases of Maintenance and Operation Supplies are funded by local, federal grant, or bond 
fund budgets and allocated by the Maintenance and Operations Department.  This type of 
award is beneficial to the District because it allows the Maintenance and Operations Department 
a larger variety of items to choose from while helping to ensure availability of all items selected.  
Any large aggregated purchases of equipment and supplies will be quoted separately to take 
advantage of volume discounts. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The intent of Bid #43-2012 is to establish a discount from catalog or published price lists for a 
variety of maintenance and operations supply categories.  The categories included in this bid 
are: 
 
Electrical Supplies Equipment Supplies 
Floor and/or Window Covering General Use Tools 
Landscaping and Grounds Supplies Painting Supplies 
Plumbing Supplies Roofing and Fence Supplies 
Miscellaneous Supplies  
 
Using this bid, the Maintenance and Operations Department may competitively purchase a wide 
variety of equipment and supplies when exact quantities cannot be specified or anticipated in 
advance.   The Maintenance and Operations Department and Purchasing Department are 
recommending an award to all vendors who submitted a complete and acceptable bid package 
regardless of discount.  This bid will be awarded as an annual contract with the option of 
renewal for two additional one year periods if both parties agree and terms and conditions 
remain the same, with exception of any documented increases delineated by the vendor and 
accepted by the District prior to renewal.  It is the intent of the administration to renew this 
contract for years 2 and 3 based on pricing and performance.  
 
Submitted by:  Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
   Kevin McKeever, Director of Operations 
    

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

8.B.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

45



Electrical 

Supplies

Equipment 

Supplies

Floor and/or 

Window 

Covering

General Use 

Tools

Landscaping 

and Grounds 

Supplies

Painting 

Supplies

Plumbing 

Supplies

Roofing and 

Fence 

Supplies

Miscellaneous 

Supplies

Freight & 

Add'l Notes

All Pro Sound No Bid

10%, Audio, 

Video, Lighting No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

FOB, See bid 

response for 

exclusions

American Trailer Rental No Bid

10%, Van 

Storage 

Trailers No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

10%, 

Corrugated 

Boxes

$85 drop off & 

pick-up 

charge, plus 

rental fees

Central Ace Hardware 15% No Bid No Bid 15% 15% 15% 15% No Bid 15%

Central Poly Corporation No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

5%, Plastic 

Liners

$500 min. 

order

Century Air Conditioning Supply, L.P. No Bid

0%, HVAC 

equipment, 

parts & 

supplies No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Cornerstone Hardware & Supplies No Bid No Bid No Bid 0-60% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Crawford Electric Supply 15-70% 15-70% No Bid 15-70% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 15-70%

Enchanted Forest No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 30% No Bid 30% No Bid No Bid

Firetron, Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

15%, Fire 

Alarm, Security 

& Intercom 

Systems FOB

Ferguson Enterprises Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 50% No Bid No Bid

Franks Iron Works & Industrial Coating Inc. 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

20%, Metal 

Supplies

Frank's Nursery LLC No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 15-25% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Glidden Professional Paint Center No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 30% No Bid 30%

30%, Wall 

Talkers

Graybar Electric Co., Inc. 0% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Gulf Coast Boiler Service Co. No Bid 15%, Boilers No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Gustafson Manufacturing Company No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 0%, Line King No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid FOB

Guardian Repair & Parts No Bid

0-30%, 

Janitorial 

Equipment No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0-30%, 

Janitorial Parts

H2O Pool Products No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Swimming 

Pool Products FOB

Hardwood Products Co. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Plywood, 

Lumber, 

Mouldings, 

Laminate

Delivery 

Charge of 

$100 for 

Orders < 

$1,000

Hausler's Paint & Decorating No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 20% No Bid No Bid No Bid

Hilti, Inc. 40-45% No Bid No Bid 40-45% No Bid No Bid 40-45% No Bid

40-45%, See 

bid response for 

additional items

FOB, See bid 

response for 

exclusions

Bid Summary

Bid 43-2012

Maintenance and Operations Supplies

January 17, 2013

46



Electrical 

Supplies

Equipment 

Supplies

Floor and/or 

Window 

Covering

General Use 

Tools

Landscaping 

and Grounds 

Supplies

Painting 

Supplies

Plumbing 

Supplies

Roofing and 

Fence 

Supplies

Miscellaneous 

Supplies

Freight & 

Add'l Notes

Bid Summary

Bid 43-2012

Maintenance and Operations Supplies

January 17, 2013

IDN-Acme, Inc. No Bid

38-57.5%, 

Locksmith 

Tools & 

Hardware No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

38-57.5%, Door 

Hardware & 

Access Control

International Roadway Research No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 0% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Sold only in 

pallets

J.K. Wallcovering Co. No Bid No Bid 20% No Bid No Bid 20% No Bid No Bid

20%, Vinyl 

Wallcovering

Jack's Lock & Safe Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Locks & 

Hardware

Laird Plastics No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Plastic, 

Sheets, Rods, 

Tubes & Film

Larry's Signs No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

5%, Signs & 

Sign Supplies

Letco Group, LLC No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 0% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Lincoln Equipment Inc. No Bid

3%, Pool 

Pumps, 

Heaters & 

Filters 3% No Bid No Bid 3% No Bid No Bid

3%, Pool & 

Swimming 

Supplies

Lunsford Door & Service, Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Doors & 

Hardware

M.W. Muegge Dozer No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Heavy 

Equipment

Nelson Plant Food Corp. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 0% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

PPG Architectural Finishes, Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 20-45% No Bid No Bid No Bid

Phil's Plumbing Co. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 0% No Bid No Bid

Professional Polish Inc. No Bid

15-25%, 

Mowers No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

15-25%, 

Janitorial 

Equipment

Professional Turf Products No Bid

0%, Mowers, 

Utility Vehicles 

& Irrigation 

Equipment No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid FOB

Progressive Commercial Aquatics, Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, Pool 

Equipment, 

Supplies, Parts 

& Chemicals

$45 Freight / 

Delivery 

Charge

ProLine Materials, Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

0%, ASPPM 

Grade IV Cold 

Mix

Bulk or 

Bagged 

Product

47



Electrical 

Supplies

Equipment 

Supplies

Floor and/or 

Window 

Covering

General Use 

Tools

Landscaping 

and Grounds 

Supplies

Painting 

Supplies

Plumbing 

Supplies

Roofing and 

Fence 

Supplies

Miscellaneous 

Supplies

Freight & 

Add'l Notes

Bid Summary

Bid 43-2012

Maintenance and Operations Supplies

January 17, 2013

Rosenberg Tractor No Bid

0-10%, 

Tractors, 

Mowers, 

Trailers & 

Landscape 

Equipment No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Sealy Tractor Inc. No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 10% No Bid No Bid No Bid 10%, Parts

Power 

Equipment 

excluded

Sign Designs No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid 20%, All Signs

Sunbelt Supply LLC 0% No Bid No Bid 0% 0% 0% 0% No Bid

0%, Hardware, 

Janitorial & 

Safety Products

Most order 

free freight

Turf Equipment & Supplies, Inc. No Bid

0-40%, 

Mowers & 

Power 

Products No Bid No Bid 0-40% No Bid No Bid No Bid 0-40%

Urbish Electric, LLC 0% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

Pick-up 

required for 

orders < 

$1,000

USA Drinking Fountain No Bid

35%, Water 

Coolers & 

Drinking 

Fountains No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

35%, 

Replacement 

Parts & 

Supplies

$50 minimum 

order

Voss Lighting 58-86.1% No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid

W.L. Lashley & Associates, Inc. No Bid 10%, HVAC No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid FOB

48



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PURCHASE FOR SCHOOL BUSES 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of twelve (12) Special Needs Lift 
Buses from Thomas Bus Gulf Coast for $1,114,824 and fifty (50) 78 Passenger 
Conventional School Buses from Longhorn Bus Sales for $4,149,050. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Bid #45-2012 requested prices to purchase Special Needs Lift Buses and 78 Passenger 
Conventional School Buses.   
 
The Transportation and Purchasing Departments worked together on specifications, 
evaluation, and award recommendation.  All buses will come equipped with a digital 
surveillance camera system. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
These buses will be replacing buses with high mileage.  The funding for these buses 
comes from the 2011 Bond package.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jimmie Stegemiller, Director of Transportation 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
    
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 
 

8.B.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

49



Item Qty. Description

Thomas Bus 

Gulf Coast

Rush Bus 

Center

Longhorn Bus 

Sales

1 12 Special Needs Lift Bus 92,902.00 93,163.00 92,986.00

2 50 78 Passenger Conventional School Bus 86,802.00 83,951.00 82,981.00

Total $1,114,824.00 $0.00 $4,149,050.00

Bid 45-2012
School Buses

January 17, 2013

50



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF  
FOOD SERVICE VEHICLES 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of a Food Services Van from Philpott 
Motors in the amount of $19,990. 
  
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Bid #46-2012 requested prices to purchase a service van for the Food Services 
Department. The Food Service Department worked with the Purchasing Department on 
bid specifications, evaluation, and award recommendation. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This vehicle will be used in the daily operations of the Food Services Department.  The 
Food Services Department is replacing one van that was involved in an accident and 
has been determined to be a total loss. 
 
 
Submitted by: Audrey L. Fox, Purchasing Manager 
   Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
   Anthony Simmons, Director of Food Services    
 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#12. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

51



Item Qty. Description Helfman Ford Philpott Motors

Grand Truck 

Center

1 1 Food Service Van 20,229.00 19,990.00 21,513.00 

Bid 46-2012
Food Service Vehicle

January 17, 2013

52



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MATERIAL TESTING SERVICES FOR THE 
RENOVATIONS TO BOWIE ELEMENTARY, JACKSON ELEMENTARY, GEORGE 

JUNIOR HIGH, AND TERRY HIGH SCHOOLS 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon for material testing services for the 
renovations to Bowie Elementary, Jackson Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry 
High schools not to exceed $22,015. 
 
 
IMPACT RATIONALE: 
 
Material testing services is a professional service that the District must contract directly. 
These funds were allocated within the 2011 Bond. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Material testing is a process during construction that insures materials are installed 
correctly. These reports are crucial in the renovations to Bowie Elementary, Jackson 
Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry High schools. 
 
 

 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

 

8.B.#13. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING SERVICES  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Kelly R. Kaluza and Associates, Inc. for professional 
surveying services (partial topographic survey) for the renovations to Bowie Elementary, 
Jackson Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry High schools not to exceed the 
$12,590. 
 
 
IMPACT RATIONALE: 
 
Professional surveying services is a professional service that the District must contract 
directly. These funds were allocated within the 2011 Bond Funds.  Services include a 
standard topographic survey needed for the design of the renovations to Bowie 
Elementary, Jackson Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry High schools. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Professional surveying services will generate reports and drawings locating property 
boundaries, locations of easements, and information on site utilities. The land survey is 
necessary for these renovations. 
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

 

8.B.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

65



66



67



68



69



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROCUREMENT METHOD FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE NEW NATATORIUM, TRAYLOR STADIUM RENOVATIONS AND THE NEW 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED HIGH SCHOOL BASEBALL FIELD 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees authorize the administration to utilize competitive sealed 
proposals as the construction method of procurement with the evaluation criteria 
(attached) for the construction of the new Natatorium, Traylor Stadium Renovations and 
the new Lamar Consolidated High School Baseball Field.  

 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 

The Texas Education Code 44.031 defines the methods of procurement available to the 
District for purchases totaling $50,000.00 or more.  In addition, the Texas Government 
Code 2267 requires the Board of Trustees to specify which method of procurement will 
be used before any construction project is advertised and released for bids.  The 
authorization given with this motion will allow the administration to proceed with 
solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for the construction of the new Natatorium, 
Traylor Stadium Renovations, and the new Lamar Consolidated High School Baseball 
Field. 

 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

The competitive sealed proposal method of procurement promotes competitive pricing 
among the bidders, but allows negotiations between the District and the selected 
contractor(s) before the contract is finalized.  As the District must state its selected 
method of procurement, as well as the evaluation criteria in the notice to bidders, this 

authorization will allow the administration to proceed with securing offers for the Board’s 

consideration and approval. 

 

Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 

Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

8.B.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

70



CSP EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposal opening date: 

Criteria
Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

Average Score 

for Criteria

T
e

a
m

 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 -
 

5
%

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 

W
o

rk
 -

 5
%

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 

o
f 

S
c

h
e

d
u

le
- 

5
%

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

O
rd

e
r 

R
e

p
u

ta
ti

o
n

 -
 

5
%

W
a

rr
a

n
ty

 

W
o

rk
 -

 5
%

C
li

e
n

t 

S
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n
 -

 

5
%

T
im

e
 i

n
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 -

 

5
% Responses are scored as follows:  0-1 yr = 0 pt,  2-3 yrs = 1 pt, 4-5 yrs = 2 pts, 6-7 yrs = 3 pts, 8-9 yrs = 4 pts, 10-11 yrs = 5 pts, 12-

13 yrs = 6 pts,  14-15 yrs = 7 pts, 16-17 = 8 pts, 18-19 yrs - 9 pts, 20 yrs = 10 pts.

Responses are scored as follows:  Excellent = 10pts, Very Good = 8pts, Average = 6 pts, Fair = 3pts, Poor = 0 pts.

Responses are scored as follows:  Excellent = 10pts, Very Good = 8pts, Average = 6 pts, Fair = 3pts, Poor = 0 pts.

Responses are scored as follows:  Excellent = 10pts, Very Good = 8pts, Average = 6 pts, Fair = 3pts, Poor = 0 pts.

Completed ahead of schedule overcoming uncontrollable circumstances = 5 pts, Completed ahead of schedule  = 4 pts, Completed 

on Schedule  = 3 pts, Completed less than two weeks behind schedule = 1 pts, Completed more than two weeks behind schedule = 0 

pts

Responses are scored as follows:  Excellent = 10pts, Very Good = 8pts, Average = 6 pts, Fair = 3pts, Poor = 0 pts.

Description

Responses are scored as follows:  Excellent = 10pts, Very Good = 8pts, Average = 6 pts, Fair = 3pts, Poor = 0 pts.

71



E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 -

 

5
%

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

T
e

a
m

 -
 1

0
%

C
lo

s
e

 O
u

t 

R
e

c
o

rd
 -

 5
%

S
a

fe
ty

 

R
a

ti
n

g
 -

 5
%

Contractor furnishes information on a minimum of 5 school projects completed under CSP or Hard Bid of comparable size as defined 

above.  Contractor to provide corresponding copies of Certificates of Substantial Completion as well as final applications for

Contractors to provide the Owner with their Experience Modifier Rate (EMR).  Those with an EMR of 0.50 or less = 5 pts,  EMR of 

0.51-0.85 = 4 pts,  EMR of 0.86-0.99 = 3 pts,   EMR greater that 1.00 = 0 pts.

Resumes for Project Manager and Project Superintendent will each be evaluated and points given to the team for the following.  Time 

in the business (for each individual): 10+ yrs = 4 pts, 8-9 yrs = 3 pts, 5-7 yrs = 2 pts, 2-4 yrs = 1pt, and less than 2 yr

Contractor earns one point for each project that falls within a +/- 25% range of the project budgetup to a maximum of 10 points.

72



 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES FOR THE DESIGN OF 
THE JACKSON ELEMETARY AND TERRY HIGH SCHOOL RENOVATION 

PROJECTS 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon for geotechnical engineering services for the 
design of the Jackson Elementary and Terry High School renovation projects not to exceed 
$4,200. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Geotechnical services are a professional service that the District must contract directly. 
These funds were allocated within the 2011 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical services will generate reports that provide soil data that the architect needs to 
generate the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in the design of the 
Jackson Elementary and Terry High School renovation projects. 
 

 
Submitted by:  J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

 

 

 

8.B.#16. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE RENOVATIONS TO 
BOWIE ELEMENTARY  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the renovations to 
Bowie Elementary. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
VLK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for renovations to Bowie 
Elementary.   The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 8, 2011 Lamar CISD passed a bond issue that included renovations to 
Bowie Elementary School.  Upon approval of the design development, the construction 
documents phase will begin.   
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#17a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

80



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE RENOVATIONS TO 
GEORGE JUNIOR HIGH  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the renovations to 
George Junior High. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
VLK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for renovations to 
George Junior High.   The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 8, 2011 Lamar CISD passed a bond issue that included renovations to 
George Junior High School.  Upon approval of the design development, the construction 
documents phase will begin.   
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

 

8.B.#17b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

81



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE RENOVATIONS TO 
JACKSON ELEMENTARY  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the renovations to 
Jackson Elementary. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
VLK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for renovations to 
Jackson Elementary.   The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 8, 2011 Lamar CISD passed a bond issue that included renovations to 
Jackson Elementary School.  Upon approval of the design development, the 
construction documents phase will begin.   
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

 

8.B.#17c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

82



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE RENOVATIONS TO 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED HIGH SCHOOL 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the renovations to 
Lamar Consolidated High School. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
VLK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for renovations to Lamar 
Consolidated High School.   The design development booklets will be under separate 
cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 8, 2011 Lamar CISD passed a bond issue that included renovations to 
Lamar Consolidated High School.  Upon approval of the design development, the 
construction documents phase will begin.   
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

8.B.#17d. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

83



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE RENOVATIONS TO 

TERRY HIGH  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the renovations to Terry 
High. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
VLK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for renovations to Terry 
High School.   The design development booklets will be under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On November 8, 2011 Lamar CISD passed a bond issue that included renovations to 
Terry High School.  Upon approval of the design development, the construction 
documents phase will begin.   
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

 

8.B.#17e. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

84



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DESIGN DEVELOPMENT FOR THE NEW LAMAR 

CONSOLIDATED HIGH SCHOOL BASEBALL FIELD  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the design development for the new Lamar 
Consolidated High School Baseball Field. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
PBK Architects, Inc. will be presenting the design development for the new Lamar 
Consolidated High School Baseball Field.   The design development booklets will be 
under separate cover. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
At the regular board meeting November 15, 2012 the Board approved a Natatorium 
Master Plan that locates the new district Natatorium where the existing Lamar 
Consolidated Baseball Field is currently.  Upon approval PBK Architects will begin the 
construction drawing phase for the new Lamar Consolidated High School Baseball 
Field. 
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Ed Bailey, Gilbane 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

 

8.B.#18. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

85



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO EASEMENT AT THE OLD JANE 
LONG GYM SITE 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve amendment to the easement on the old Jane Long 
Gym site. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This ingress and egress easement was granted by Lamar CISD back in 1961.  This 
easement is 30 feet wide and 260.5 feet long for the purpose of ingress, egress and 
parking through the District’s track to the home owners.  The easement stated that the 
District can, at any time, revoke/terminate the easement upon 6 months’ notice, and the 
rights to use that land or continue the driveway would be terminated.  The home owner 
is asking the District to give up the termination right and make this a permanent 
easement.    
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval the easement will be amended and become a permanent easement to 
provide permanent access to the home owner. 
 
 
Submitted by: J. Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations    
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

8.B.#19. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: SCHOOL SAFETY REVIEW 
 
 
 
On August 23, 2011 the board reviewed the Texas School Safety Audit Report for 
Lamar CISD schools.  Once every three years a school district is required to conduct a 
security audit of the district’s facilities.  The results of the report are required to be 
presented to the board. 
 
The district has reviewed the Emergency Operations Plan with the staff and asked that 
they be diligent in following the procedures.  The staff will be prepared to answer any 
questions at the board meeting. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Dr. Kathleen Bowen, Executive Director of Human Resources 
     Trudy Harris, Assistant Director of Employee Svcs./Risk Mgmt. 

9.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

95



 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR  
FISCAL YEAR 2013 - 2014 

 
  
 
 
Attached is the proposed budget calendar for the 2013-2014 school year.  This is 
a tentative calendar and will change if circumstances arise which would warrant 
modification. 
 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
           Yvonne Dawson, Budget & Treasury Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 

9.A.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 
1 

96



ADOPTED BUDGET CALENDAR 
FISCAL YEAR:  2013-14 

 
 

January 2013 
 
 

Review and file 2012-13 adopted budget through PEIMS 

Review position control 

Begin accumulating data for special allocations 

Provide budget calendar for 2013-14 to Board for 

information - January 2013 

 

February 2013 
 

Update and distribute budget materials to principals 

and budget managers at February K-12 meeting. (Follow 
up with WebEx meetings) 
Conduct Federal/State Program Budget and Campus 
Improvement Training 
Create and Edit the First Draft of the District Improvement 
Plan 

 
 

March 2013 
 
Publish the First Draft of the District Improvement Plan 
Refine budget assumptions 

Prepare salary studies and cost projections 

Develop initial revenue and expenditure projections 

Assess current year budgetary status 

Budgets entered into MUNIS by campuses/departments 

 Central Office Review and Evaluation of 
Data Entered by Campuses & Departments by the  
Superintendent/CFO (and other designated 
individuals) 

First draft of Campus Improvement Plans entered into 
DMAC for central office to review for alignment with the 
District Improvement Plan. 
 

 
April 2013 

 
Meet with Principals& Department Heads to discuss 
CIP alignment with budgets and District Improvement Plan. 
Develop preliminary debt service and food service budgets 

Human Resource Department to finalize staffing allocations 

Receive preliminary certified tax roll/values 

 

 

May 2013 
 
Board Workshop for Budget (Session #1) 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
June 2013 

 
Refine budgets as necessary 
Revise District and Campus Plans for Alignment with 
Projected Staff and Expenditure Allocations 

Refine salary/benefit cost projections 

Receive preliminary certified tax roll/values 

Board Workshop for Budget (Session #2) 
 
 

July 2013 

Board Workshop (Session #3) 

Receive certified tax roll/values 

Refine revenue/expenditure budgets (all) 

Calculate estimated actual and rollback tax rates 

 
 

August 2013 
 
Final revenue/expenditure budget adjustments 

Refine all tax rate calculations 
Board Workshop (Session #4) 
Board Workshop (Session #5, if needed) 

Budget notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  
Tax rate notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  
Finalize District and Campus Improvement Plans 

 
 

September 2013 

 
Present District and Campus Improvement Plans to the 
Board for approval 

 
 

October 2013 
 
Fort Bend County Tax Office to mail tax statements 

File 2013-14 adopted budget through PEIMS  
 

 
 

97



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A"  gives the LCISD collections made during the month of December 31, 2012. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2012 through August 31, 2013. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2012-13 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through December 31, 2012, Lamar had collected 
33.1% of the 2012-13 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2012-2013. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, Chief Financial Officer 
 

9.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

98



Exhibit ALamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections
December  2012

General Fund Debt Service

Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &

Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees

12 44,354,898.77$            -$                            -$                        44,354,898.77$             33,186,800.17$            -$                         11,168,098.60$         

11 141,006.14$                 32,573.35$                 35,037.47$              208,616.96$                  103,473.50$                 58,940.43$               37,532.64$                8,670.39$                    

10 44,769.84$                   15,004.62$                 11,135.26$              70,909.72$                    33,467.08$                   22,351.76$               11,302.76$                3,788.12$                    

09 60,419.68$                   25,609.78$                 14,466.37$              100,495.83$                  47,518.58$                   34,608.93$               12,901.10$                5,467.22$                    

08 37,327.83$                   20,232.46$                 10,897.78$              68,458.07$                    29,363.63$                   26,814.47$               7,964.20$                  4,315.77$                    

07 3,430.19$                     489.03$                      224.98$                   4,144.20$                      2,646.61$                     604.05$                    783.58$                     109.96$                       

06 2,769.71$                     280.48$                      118.89$                   3,169.08$                      2,380.58$                     360.17$                    389.13$                     39.20$                         

05 1,655.73$                     568.63$                      134.20$                   2,358.56$                      1,453.15$                     627.29$                    202.58$                     75.54$                         

04 488.19$                        442.72$                      171.29$                   1,102.20$                      418.36$                        548.59$                    69.83$                       65.42$                         

03 62.85$                          63.30$                        20.20$                     146.35$                         55.13$                          75.45$                      7.72$                         8.05$                           

02 55.25$                          58.88$                        15.60$                     129.73$                         49.82$                          68.67$                      5.43$                         5.81$                           

01 119.30$                        143.62$                      33.09$                     296.01$                         107.54$                        162.52$                    11.76$                       14.19$                         

00 0.18$                            0.28$                          0.07$                       0.53$                             0.18$                            0.35$                        -$                           -$                             

99 -$                             -$                            -$                        -$                               -$                             -$                         -$                           -$                             

98 -$                             -$                            -$                        -$                               -$                             -$                         -$                           -$                             

97 -$                             -$                            -$                        -$                               -$                             -$                         -$                           -$                             

96 38.96$                          66.70$                        12.14$                     117.80$                         35.37$                          72.70$                      3.59$                         6.14$                           

95 46.31$                          90.47$                        17.79$                     154.57$                         43.83$                          103.42$                    2.48$                         4.84$                           

94 23.73$                          53.85$                        11.63$                     89.21$                           22.50$                          62.69$                      1.23$                         2.79$                           

93 51.44$                          122.94$                      26.16$                     200.54$                         49.15$                          143.62$                    2.29$                         5.48$                           

92 82.99$                          208.31$                      43.70$                     335.00$                         82.99$                          252.01$                    -$                           -$                             

91 109.52$                        286.95$                      59.47$                     455.94$                         106.55$                        338.65$                    2.97$                         7.77$                           

90 7.91$                            21.67$                        4.44$                       34.02$                           7.36$                            24.59$                      0.55$                         1.52$                           

89 -$                             -$                            -$                        -$                               -$                             -$                         -$                           -$                             

88 & prior -$                             -$                            -$                        -$                               -$                             -$                         -$                           -$                             

 

Totals 44,647,364.52$            96,318.04$                 72,430.53$              44,816,113.09$             33,408,082.08$            146,160.36$             11,239,282.44$         22,588.21$                  

    

99



Exhibit BLamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2012-August 31, 2013
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes

Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 12-31-12

12 136,145,655.46$             5,869,056.53$        142,014,711.99$            47,063,369.89$                    -$                        -$                        47,063,369.89$               94,951,342.10$            

11 1,526,426.10$                 (26,868.98)$           1,499,557.12$                502,038.98$                         108,416.49$           122,955.60$           733,411.07$                    997,518.14$                 

10 712,478.78$                    (4,280.90)$             708,197.88$                   148,757.73$                         48,027.55$             36,730.72$             233,516.00$                    559,440.15$                 

09 531,424.87$                    (32,191.86)$           499,233.01$                   99,308.15$                           50,968.41$             29,759.17$             180,035.73$                    399,924.86$                 

08 360,340.24$                    (1,677.32)$             358,662.92$                   64,428.45$                           29,693.88$             14,547.87$             108,670.20$                    294,234.47$                 

07 287,280.27$                    (5,442.61)$             281,837.66$                   11,967.88$                           3,842.85$               2,461.33$               18,272.06$                      269,869.78$                 

06 222,534.53$                    (1,333.21)$             221,201.32$                   8,021.43$                             3,490.48$               1,348.65$               12,860.56$                      213,179.89$                 

05 216,529.51$                    (1,456.38)$             215,073.13$                   6,052.17$                             3,563.71$               1,171.71$               10,787.59$                      209,020.96$                 

04 134,192.21$                    (1,361.98)$             132,830.23$                   3,326.95$                             2,427.08$               853.93$                  6,607.96$                        129,503.28$                 

03 121,282.11$                    (1,050.99)$             120,231.12$                   2,908.30$                             2,218.12$               581.44$                  5,707.86$                        117,322.82$                 

02 106,981.89$                    (783.80)$                 106,198.09$                   2,922.90$                             2,572.49$               617.77$                  6,113.16$                        103,275.19$                 

01 83,228.49$                      (811.25)$                 82,417.24$                     1,725.31$                             2,272.39$               549.46$                  4,547.16$                        80,691.93$                   

00 71,500.23$                      (802.73)$                 70,697.50$                     1,576.07$                             2,340.23$               587.07$                  4,503.37$                        69,121.43$                   

99 68,463.25$                      (719.61)$                 67,743.64$                     1,397.83$                             2,226.81$               543.74$                  4,168.38$                        66,345.81$                   

98 58,230.23$                      (702.36)$                 57,527.87$                     1,289.00$                             2,193.12$               522.25$                  4,004.37$                        56,238.87$                   

97 52,779.15$                      (992.93)$                 51,786.22$                     1,968.90$                             3,631.98$               840.15$                  6,441.03$                        49,817.32$                   

96 50,566.35$                      (780.70)$                 49,785.65$                     1,281.97$                             2,458.60$               552.07$                  4,292.64$                        48,503.68$                   

95 39,898.13$                      (479.01)$                 39,419.12$                     1,251.68$                             2,568.69$               562.00$                  4,382.37$                        38,167.44$                   

94 31,443.94$                      (454.25)$                 30,989.69$                     1,066.42$                             2,336.31$               510.20$                  3,912.93$                        29,923.27$                   

93 29,766.02$                      (106.28)$                 29,659.74$                     1,461.37$                             3,386.13$               727.16$                  5,574.66$                        28,198.37$                   

92 27,735.63$                      (18.66)$                   27,716.97$                     1,494.56$                             3,646.14$               771.03$                  5,911.73$                        26,222.41$                   

91 & prior 30,008.31$                      1,170.11$               31,178.42$                     1,774.45$                             4,751.83$               968.34$                  7,494.62$                        29,403.97$                   

Totals $140,908,745.70 $5,787,910.83 $146,696,656.53 $47,929,390.39 $287,033.29 $218,161.66 $48,434,585.34 $98,767,266.14

100



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS

PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH

FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.01% 0.0%

NOV 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0% 3.3% 4.0% 3.2%

DEC 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7% 16.8% 20.7% 16.9%

JAN 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6% 74.9% 69.0% 62.6%

FEB 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5% 92.3% 92.4% 91.7%

MAR 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3% 93.8% 94.0% 93.1%

APR 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2% 94.8% 94.9% 94.8%

MAY 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1% 95.5% 95.5% 95.5%

JUNE 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8% 96.4% 96.2% 96.3%

JULY 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4% 97.1% 97.0% 96.9%

AUG 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 97.5% 97.3% 97.3%

 

 

 

 

101



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2012-13 TAX COLLECTIONS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET

LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 12-31-12 COLLECTED

 

2012 2012-13 $139,195,507 $47,063,370 33.81%

2011 &  Prior 2011-12 & Prior $2,300,000 $866,021 37.65%

TOTAL $141,495,507 $47,929,390 33.87%

102



Exhibit ELAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX COLLECTION REPORT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

SCHOOL YEAR 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13

TAX YEAR 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

COLLECTION YEAR

1 Orig. Levy 111,004,084$        126,505,684$        127,458,872$        129,215,668          132,226,943          136,145,655        

1 Collections 108,651,032$        123,171,452$        128,154,416$        132,086,020          136,117,707          47,063,370          

Adj. To Roll     (362,468)$              (1,054,535)$           2,995,248$            4,579,622              5,417,190              5,869,057            

2 Collections 1,347,912$            1,484,532$            1,349,141$            1,050,557              502,039                

Adj. To Roll 27,409$                 (65,264)$                (117,676)$              53,764                  (26,869)                 

3 Collections 267,371$               248,471$               368,541$               148,758                

Adj. To Roll 21,693$                 96$                        67,079$                 (4,281)                   

4  Collections   136,983$               223,830$               99,308                   

Adj.  To Roll 54,869$                 102,644$               (32,192)                  

5 Collections 170,751$               64,428                   

Adj. To Roll 115,743$               (1,677)                    

6 Collections 11,968$                 

Adj. To Roll (5,443)$                  

TOTAL:

COLLECTIONS 110,586,016$        125,192,713$        129,971,407$        133,285,334$        136,619,746$        47,063,370$        

ADJUSTED TAX ROLL 110,855,886$        125,486,947$        130,371,332$        133,844,773$        137,617,264$        142,014,712$      

 

BALANCE TO

BE COLLECTED 269,870$               294,234$               399,925$               559,439$               997,518$               94,951,342$        

ADJ. TAXABLE

VALUE 8,542,818,671$     9,670,323,068$     10,046,725,379$   9,808,711,520$     9,900,166,439$     10,216,518,254$ 

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.8% 99.8% 99.7% 99.6% 99.3% 33.1%

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012  

TAX RATE 1.29765$               1.29765$               1.29765$               1.36455 1.39005 1.39005

103



 
 
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS  
 

 
Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 

 
 
BLS Construction 
(Ag Barn)       Application # 2 $      238,146.90 
 
CenterPoint 
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 1 $          1,793.75 
 
Drymalla Construction      
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 9 $      863,123.45 
 
Drymalla Construction      
(Polly Ryon Middle)      Application # 9 $      852,211.75 
 
Fort Bend MUD #146 
(Adolphus Elem #22)     Application # 1 $      357,136.11 
 
PBK Architects      
(Adolphus Elem #22 – Phase 2)    Application # 8 $          7,442.34 
 
PBK Architects   
(George Ranch HS Build Out)    Application # 7 $             580.75 
 
PBK Architects      
(Polly Ryon Middle – Phase 2)    Application # 8 $        12,339.34 
 
VLK Architects  
(Ag Barn)       Application # 1 $        17,142.66 
 
VLK Architects  
(Ag Barn –Reimbursables)     Application # 1 $          6,889.11 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

9.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

104



 
INFORMATION ITEM: REGION 4 – MAINTENANCE & OPERATIONS 
 

This agenda item will be on the Board Agenda each month to provide updates on 
Region 4’s progress with Maintenance and Operations.  The following indicates action 
that has taken place since the last regular board meeting. 
 
Work Request Summary for December, 2012: 
 

 The Department completed 879 requests with 106 new requests 

 70 were closed   
 
Maintenance: 
 
The Maintenance Department assisted by: 
 

 Hanging four pictures at Brazos Crossing  

 Installing a new paper towel dispenser in a restroom at Jackson Elementary 

 Repairing a soap dispenser at Jackson Elementary 

 Replacing a paper towel dispenser in the clinic at Dickinson Elementary 

 Installing a new sign on the FDC pipe by Reading Junior High  

 Installing a new corner guard by the exit door at Williams Elementary 

 Installing a door stop at Wessendorff Middle 

 Performing quarterly preventative maintenance on the gates at Jane Long 
Elementary 

 Cleaning the inside of the pool top at the Natatorium 

 Repairing a bench seat on the bus drive at Hutchinson Elementary 

 Removing mildew on the outside of a portable building at Hutchinson Elementary 

 Repairing a keyboard tray at Hubenak Elementary  

 Cleaning the canopy light fixtures on the bus ramp at Frost Elementary 

 Repairing a domestic hot water boiler at the Natatorium 

 Replacing a serving line steam well drain assembly at Thomas Elementary 

 Replacing lamps on the catwalk and stage in the auditorium at Foster High  

 Replacing a ballast in a classroom at Briscoe Junior High  

 Repairing the intercom call button in a classroom at Reading Junior High 

 Repairing the intercom system at Velasquez Elementary  

 Replacing a  broken basketball backboard in the gym at Reading Junior High  

 Replacing a burglar alarm system door switch at Wertheimer Middle 

 Repairing the fire alarm system at  the Development Center 

 Repairing a serving line sneeze guard in the kitchen at Navarro Middle  

 Uncrating a large plotter and assembling the stand at Lamar High Vocational 

 Moving shelves at George Ranch High  

 Hanging a new bulletin board on the cinder block wall at George Ranch High  

 Making a rolling post and attaching a stop light for the cafeteria at Hutchinson 
Elementary 

 Replacing ceiling tiles at Lamar Junior High  

9.A.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

105



 Repainting the gray squares in the boy’s restroom at Lamar Junior High  

 Repainting a window column at Lamar Junior High  

 Installing a screw on a drawer pull for a desk and cutting ceiling tile at Lamar 
Junior High  

 Removing the volleyball and basketball pictures in the big frames by the 
concession stand and rehanging at Foster High  

 Installing four keyboard trays in office areas at the Transportation Satellite Center 

 Hanging a backdrop on the stage for a 3rd grade program at Campbell 
Elementary 

 Repairing the ice machine in the lounge at Dickinson Elementary 

 Replacing a kitchen sink faucet at Bowie Elementary 

 Repairing the exit lighting at Huggins Elementary 

 Replacing a classroom light sensor switch at George Junior High 

 Repairing the intercom system at Velasquez Elementary 

 Setting up sound equipment on the stage for an event at Lamar Junior High 

 Repairing and adjusting all door closers at the Transportation Satellite Center 

 Replacing a fire alarm duct detector at Williams Elementary 

 Replacing a fire alarm smoke detector at Briscoe Junior High 
 

 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control, and Lawn Works: 
 
The Operations Department assisted by: 
 

 Setting up the board room for a Saturday workshop, cleaning the microwaves in 
the upstairs lounge, and cleaning the lounge floor due to a spill at Brazos 
Crossing 

 Cleaning all vents in hallways, using the micromatic on the gym and hallway 
floors, and adding information to the marquee at Jackson Elementary 

 Mopping up urine in 3rd grade boy’s restroom, cleaning vomit from the cafeteria 
floor, and cleaning an accident in room 212 at Taylor Ray Elementary 

 Removing a broken table from the cafeteria, cleaning a sticky spot in the rotunda 
area, cleaning vomit from D hall, cleaning blood off of shelving, and setting up 
the cafeteria for an event at Lamar High  

 Setting up for testing, delivering copy paper to the main building, removing trash 
from the grounds area, and sweeping all entrances at Alternative Learning 
Center  

 Cleaning all the garbage cans in the cafeteria, cleaning urine from the floor, and 
delivering cases of bottled water to the office at Hubenak Elementary  

 Opening for several meetings and events at Terry High  

 Removing trash from the outside trash cans, storing boxes from the Christmas 
décor, removing recycle material, replacing a faucet nozzle, and setting up chairs 
for ABC Dental at Jane Long Elementary 

 Setting up the gym for a Christmas program, high dusting in the computer lab, 
and removing carpet stains in the office area at Williams Elementary 

106



 Cleaning lights in the office, removing spots from the cafeteria wall, using the 
micromatic on the gym floor, and adding information to the marquee at Jackson 
Elementary 

 Mopping the kinder restroom, mopping the 2nd grade boy’s restroom, moving 
tables from the library, cleaning vomit in the clinic, and replacing a broken soap 
dispenser at Taylor Ray Elementary  

 Setting up the gym for a program, moving furniture from a classroom to storage, 
delivering copy paper, delivering tables to the portables, and cleaning out a 
mechanical room at Meyer Elementary    

 Moving boxes of copy paper, removing body fluids from the wall and floor, and 
removing trash from the grounds area at Alternative Learning Center  

 Delivering 12 boxes to the 5th grade closet, removing water from kinder restroom 
due to an overflow, helping as a monitor in the cafeteria due to the lack of a 
monitor, and mopping up urine in the 4th grade area at Hubenak Elementary 

 Setting up 20 chairs on the stage, delivering ten chairs and six desks to Mrs. 
Helberg’s room, setting up for a spelling contest, and delivering tables and chairs 
to a computer room at Jane Long Elementary 

 Setting up 50 chairs in the gym for a Head Start meeting, replacing a light in a 
classroom, and delivering boxes of copy paper to the office at Seguin Elementary  

 Replacing lights in the office area at Travis Elementary 

 Mowing all athletic fields 

 Setting up George Ranch football field for a weekend tournament, removing 
bleachers from the Natatorium and delivering to various campuses  

 Cutting lines at the baseball and softball fields at Terry High  

 Repairing a leak at the George Ranch High football fields 

 Re-installing the fence around the chillers at Bowie Elementary 

 Delivering tables and chairs to the Special Needs Center 

 Moving wrestling mats throughout the District 

 Delivering tables to Terry High and Hutchison Elementary 

 Removing wasps at Hubenak Elementary 

 Providing rodent control at Jackson, Terry, Lamar High, and Wertheimer Middle 

 Providing ant control at Hubenak and Lamar Junior High 

 Scheduling Gillen’s Pest Control Services at: Beasley, Bowie, Campbell, 
Maintenance, Transportation, Jane Long, Distribution, Special Needs, Dickinson, 
Hutchison, Taylor Ray, Velasquez, Ag Barn, and Band Road Warehouse 

 
 
Resources: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

Aaron Morgan, Interim Director of Maintenance & Operations (Region 4) 
  Jeff Kimble, Assistant Director of Operations 
  James Carrillo, Assistant Director (Region 4) 

107



 

 

Lamar CISD 
2011 Bond Program 

Monthly Report 

January 2013 

2006 Bond Program Projects 
 

 

Transportation Satellite Facility 

 Projected close-out for the Satellite Transportation is March 2013. 
 
Transportation Satellite Secondary Drive 

 Environmental study is on-going, with an anticipated completion of Feb-
ruary 1, 2013. 

 TxDOT package is in Austin office as of December 10, 2012.  
 
 
 
 
 

2011 Bond Program Projects 

 
Agricultural Barn Renovations 

 New electrical panel has been installed.  
 Circulation fans have been installed. 
 Restrooms are complete. 
 Parking area re-grading is complete. 
 Concrete parking area and manure pit are complete.  
 Canopy and gutters are complete. 
 Parking lot lights are complete. 
 New cameras are installed. 
 New keypad system has been ordered. 

 
 
 
 
George Ranch High School Build-Out 

 Project is complete. 
 
 

 

Transportation Satellite 

Agricultural Barn Renovations 

GRHS Build‐Out 

9.A.#6. - PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 17, 2013 

108



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program 
Monthly Report - Executive Summary 

GILBANE 
January 2013 

Judge James C. Adolphus Elementary 

 The concrete slab on grade is completed in ALL areas.  
 Concrete curbs have been placed at 99% of the drive areas. 
 Mezzanine concrete has been placed. 
 Metal building erector is complete, except working on soffits and gutters. 
 Installation of metal roofing panels is complete.  
 Roofing trim detail is complete. 
 Mason has completed interior CMU in area B. Exterior brick and stone to 

be completed the week of January 14, 2013.  
 Overhead hangers and straps for mechanical components are installed at 

all areas. 
 Fireproofing of metal building structure is 100% complete.   
 Fireproofing of mezzanine area is complete. 
 Piping for fire protection is complete.  
 Mechanical contractor continues installing duct insulation in areas A, C, 

D, and E.  
 Controls conduit is installed in all mezzanine and interior framed areas. 
 Air handler units have been placed on equipment pads and mechanical 

piping continues. 
 Electrician is working in areas A, D, and E including wall rough-ins. Elec-

trical crew continues pulling electrical wire in areas A, C, D, and E, in-
cluding the CMU in Area B.  

 Glazer has started work in Areas A, C, D, and E. 
 Light gauge framing is completed in areas A, C, D, and E, including the 

mezzanine area. 
 Insulation has been installed within required walls in areas A, B, C, and D 

inclusive of exterior walls that have window frames installed. 
 Drywall contractor is installing drywall on both sides in Areas C and D. 
 Installation of wood blocking in areas A, C,  D, and E is completed includ-

ing installation of wood blocking at perimeter walls; crews have complet-
ed installing wood blocking in roof area.  

 Exterior wall waterproofing is complete. 
 Color finish board was delivered to the districts procurement department 

November 2, 2012.  
 Dormers are in place and sheathing is being installed. 
 Final payment to MUD for tap and usage fees has been delivered.  
 
 

Miscellaneous Renovations to Terry HS, Lamar HS, George JHS, Jackson 
ES, & Bowie ES 
 

 Coordination meetings have been held with principals at all schools to dis-
cuss scope of work. 

 Exterior additions are planned for Terry High School and Jackson Elemen-
tary.  

 Design development plans will be presented to the LCISD board for ap-
proval in January. 

  

Judge James C. Adolphus ES 

Judge James C. Adolphus ES 

Judge James C. Adolphus ES 

109



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program 
Monthly Report - Executive Summary 

GILBANE 
January 2013 

 
New Natatorium 

 The schedule is to have the new LCISD Natatorium operational June 
2014. 

 On January 10, 2013, Gilbane, LCISD, and PBK met to discuss design 
and schedule. 

 
 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

 Concrete paving is complete. 
 Concrete curbs have been installed on 90% of the paved areas. 
 Plans for the design of the new traffic signal have been submitted to 

TxDOT for review. Comments have been received and returned to 
TxDOT for final approval. 

 Interior wall framing is complete in areas A & B.  
 MEP hangers are complete in areas A & B. 
 Chilled water piping is 95% complete. 
 Fire sprinkler piping is complete in areas A & B. 
 Installation of ductwork is 95% complete in areas A & B. 
 Gym and cafeteria CMU walls are 95% complete. 
 Chillers have been set on equipment pads in the service yard. 
 Limestone is complete in areas A & B and 75% in areas C & D. 
 Metal wall panels are complete in areas A & B. 
 CMU “Main Street” walls are 95% complete. 
 Concrete parking lot islands are 90% complete. 
 Stage has been poured. 
 Windows and frames are installed in areas A & B. 
 Transformer has been set by Center Point and permanent power has been 

ordered. 
 Dormers have been set in place on roof and louvers installed. 
 Basketball goal supports have been installed in the gymnasium.  
 Cabling for data and camera systems is being installed in areas A & B. 

 
 
Traylor Stadium 

 December 7, 2012, the design team commenced the planning, design and 
scheduling for the new buildings, renovations, and replacement items. 

 Design team is planning to present the Design Development information 
for the Track and Field resurfacing at the January Board Facility Meeting. 

 
Baseball Field 

 December 7, 2012, the design team commenced the planning, design and 
scheduling for the new buildings, renovations, and replacement items. 

 Design team is planning to present the delivery method for the Track and 
Field resurfacing at the December Board. 

Polly Ryon Middle School 

Polly Ryon Middle School 

Polly Ryon Middle School 

110



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bond Program Budget 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program 
Monthly Report - Executive Summary 

GILBANE 
January 2013 

EXECUTIVE REPORT 

   BUDGET COMMITTED UNCOMMITTED PAID 
NEW FACILITIES            $51,095,099          $27,605,397             $23,489,702        $13,731,600  

LAND              $2,700,000                 $11,200               $2,688,800               $11,200  

TECHNOLOGY            $21,168,000                           ‐             $21,168,000                         ‐  

TRANSPORTATION              $6,100,779                           ‐               $6,100,779                         ‐  

EXISTING FACILITIES            $23,791,755            $2,812,983             $20,978,772          $1,541,910  

MISCELLANEOUS              $5,144,367                           ‐               $5,144,367                         ‐  

  

TOTAL         $110,000,000         $30,429,580            $79,570,420       $15,284,710  

111


	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to order and establishment of a quorum
	Opening of meeting
	Recognitions/awards
	Audience to patrons
	Approval of minutes
	December 20, 2012 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting December 20 2012.docx


	Board members reports
	Meetings and events

	Superintendent reports
	Meetings and events
	Information for immediate attention
	Introductions

	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal:  Instructional
	Consider approval of out-of-state trip requests, including, but not limited to:
	Foster High and Lamar Consolidated High Schools Speech and Debate teams
	LCISD debate LCHS FHS outofstatetrip 05032013.docx



	Goal: Planning
	Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Comprehensive Annual Finance Report for 2011 - 2012 year
	Audit.docx

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	SCHEDULE OF DECEMBER 2012 DISBURSEMENTS.docx
	MUNIS 953 December 2012 Board Copy.xlsx
	Monthly Investment Report December.pdf

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	January 13 Budget Amendments.doc

	Consider approval of Superintendent Priorities for 2012 - 2013
	Superintendent Priorities.doc
	Superintendent Priorities from October 2012.doc

	Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2013
	Board Calendar.docx

	Consider adoption of 2013 - 2014 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar
	2013-14 Instructional Calendar.doc
	13-14 Instructional Calendar DSIC Selection.pdf

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming
	Black History Month
	Black History Month 2013.doc
	Black History Month 2013 Resolution.doc

	Career and Technical Education Month
	CTE Month 2013.doc
	CTE Month 2013 Resolution.doc

	School Counselor Week
	School Counselors' Week 2013.docx
	School Counselors' Week 2013 Resolution.pdf


	Consider approval of resolution proclaiming opposition of school vouchers
	Oppose School Vouchers.docx
	Oppose School Vouchers Resolution.pdf

	Consider approval of property insurance coverage for Lamar CISD
	Property Insurance.doc
	Bid Summary Property Lamar CISD 2013 Agents Copy Rev 12-13-2012-KB (3) (2).xls

	Consider approval of Maintenance and Operations Supplies
	Bid 43-2012 Maintenance and Operations Supplies.doc
	Bid 43-2012 Maintenance and Operation Supplies backup.xls

	Consider approval of purchase of School Buses
	Bid 45-2012 School Buses.doc
	Bid 45-2012 School Buses backup.xls

	Consider approval of purchase of Food Service Vehicles
	Bid 46-2012 Food Services Vehicle.doc
	Bid 46-2012 Food Service Vehicle backup.xls

	Consider approval of material testing services for the renovations to Bowie Elementary, Jackson Elementary, George Junior High, and Terry High schools
	Material Testing.docx
	P92130006 Lamar CISD Misc Renovations.pdf

	Consider approval of professional surveying services
	Professional Surveying Services.docx
	Survey backup.pdf

	Consider approval of procurement method for the construction of the new natatorium, Traylor Stadium renovations, and the new Lamar Consolidated High School baseball field
	Procurement Method.docx
	CSP Score.xls

	Consider approval of geotechnical services for the design of the Jackson Elementary and Terry High School renovation projects
	Geotechnical services for Jackson and Terry.docx
	P92122106 Revision1 TerryHSandJacksonESRenovations LamarCISD svg PRP.pdf

	Consider approval of design development for the following school renovations:  
	Bowie Elementary School
	Design Development Renovations for Bowie Elementary.docx

	George Junior High School
	Design Development Renovations for George Junior High.docx

	Jackson Elementary School
	Design Development Renovations for Jackson Elementary.docx

	Lamar Consolidated High School
	Design Development Renovations for Lamar Consolidated High.docx

	Terry High School
	Design Development Renovations for Terry High School.docx


	Consider approval of design development for the new Lamar Consolidated High School Baseball Field
	Design Development of the Lamar Consolidated High School Baseball Field.docx

	Consider approval of amendment to easement at the old Jane Long Gym site
	Release of Easement at the old Jane Long Gym site.docx
	Jane Long Easement - 1.pdf
	Amendment to Easement (LCISD-Guerreros).pdf
	Survey - 01-10-13 for Old Jane Long gym.pdf



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	School Safety Review
	Safety Agenda item.docx

	Budget Calendar
	Budget Calendar 2013-14 cover only.doc
	2013-14 BUDGET CALENDAR -- FINAL 01092012.doc

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 123112.doc
	Tax Collections DECEMBER 2012.xls

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region_4_Monthly-December 2012.doc

	Bond Update
	Monthly Report_01092013.pdf






